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ACTION ITEMS FROM THIS MEETING:

DTSC: Post the Harbor Front Tract screening level risk evaluation report (based on 2006 and 2007 groundwater, soil matrix and soil gas samples (that Kimi talked about) on EnviroStor within a week. p.29 
DR. ESPOSITO: write a letter for the CAG Chair to Zeneca asking for them to provide to the CAG an interim report on the radiological assessment for the site, and in particular, to preserve Michael Cooper's notes on the interviews of the former employees. p.30
DTSC: Look for historical air monitoring samples for levels of benzene in Harbor Front air.  Also look for documents regarding any  underground tanks that existed in that area and how they were closed.  An example given was the Cray Cable business.  Then try to do an assessment of the benzene in the air with that info. p. 33.

MR. THOMPSON: Give B. Cook location details for creeks and such that may be draining toxics from “glue/adhesive” and “dish making” factories and such, on marsh border area near Costco (El Cerrito?) p.34.   

PROCEEDINGS:
MR. ROBINSON:  Good evening.  We are experiencing some technical difficulty, so thanks for your patience.  We are going to open up the meeting now, and I suppose we should start off with a review of the agenda.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  We will get started.  And as you can tell, we are without microphones this evening.  So I will try to keep my own voice as loud and still pleasant as possible.  I'll remind the CAG members of our audio challenges for the audience, for each other, and, of course, for our transcriptionist who will still be trying to get every word of the proceedings.  

I will introduce myself as your facilitator this evening.  My name is Kay Wallis.  I am very pleased to be here to facilitate this April meeting of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area Community Advisory Group.  We appreciate everyone's flexibility in meeting in this new location.  We expect, next month, to be back in our location.  It was an aberration for us to have to come here because of another meeting going on at the City Council chambers.  So thank you for being flexible and working with us.  

We will go right into our agenda review.  There are agendas at the front of the room, if you weren't able to get one so far.  After our opening activities we are going to go straight into our DTSC update with Ms. Barbara Cook, and then immediately following, our Cherokee/Simeon Ventures update with Doug Mosteller.  As is our custom, we will then follow with a joint question and answer session for members of the CAG and the audience to ask questions of DTSC or Cherokee/Simeon Ventures.  We will then proceed into the Toxics Committee update which will be followed by a ten minute break.  

The break will conclude, and then we will have our public comment period for about ten minutes, and then a little longer than usual section of committee updates from the CAG, and then we'll be wrapping it up with our approval of prior meeting minutes.  Any comments or questions for the CAG about the agenda before we go into the process review?

So in terms of process, as the facilitator, my main responsibility is to keep our group on topic and on time.  So we will… our goal is to adjourn at 9:00 o'clock.  The agenda will be a very helpful tool in keeping us on track.  We have been using a couple of techniques in past meetings that have been, I think, very helpful in keeping us all on time and on topic, one of which is we have these green question slips that are available to both CAG members here at the front and there are some extra copies over here on the refreshment table for the audience.  And these are simply a way to record any thoughts, comments or questions that you might have, even if you plan to ask it verbally or state it verbally to the group.  

This is just a nice way to organize your thoughts.  It is also a great way to capture the question should we run out of time and not get to everyone's question or comment.  Then this slip can be submitted to the CAG's secretary, Carolyn Graves, and then it can be referred to, answered by, addressed by whatever appropriate subcommittee or member of the CAG would be involved.  

So these are something we have been using, and I will be sure to collect any outstanding question slips at the end of the meeting.  We have also been asking that members of the audience and the CAG limit questions and comments as much as possible to two minutes.  And this will help us all to use the time most effectively.  I have a timer that will help remind us what two minutes looks like.  

So we have question slips and we have a two minute time limit, and we also have our action item list here at the front.  Sometimes during the proceedings things come up that we want to make sure there is some sort of follow through after the meeting concludes.  And so we have been recording these action items up at the front and always putting some kind of time line and some sort of responsible party who will take responsibility for the follow up.  This is also a place where we can capture items that for some reason we just couldn't accommodate within the agenda.  Sometimes topics come up that aren't exactly on point, but that we don't want to lose.  So we will capture those on the action item list as well.  

I think that is about it for process points.  So unless there is any questions or comments to get us started, let's go directly to our first item on the agenda which is the DTSC update with Ms. Cook.

MS. COOK:  My name is Barbara Cook.  I am with the Department of Toxics Substance Control.  I am going to quickly go through this because we have a lot of items on the agenda tonight.  And I will not be covering the Zeneca update.  Doug will give that as part of his presentation.  

The Harbor Front site, which is the business park area, we are looking… the DTSC consultant is finalizing the memo.  

We are also working on trying to get the sampling work plan finalized.  We're trying to work with the property owner to make sure that if they have any issues that they would like to address and get their permission to go forward on that, so until that work is done we can't implement the sampling plan.  

The UC Richmond Field Station.  DTSC is reviewing the responses that they submitted to us on the current conditions report.  We also have, based on soil data that was done… and I think I brought this up at the last meeting… in the western transitional area, there are two ash piles that we are asking to be removed.  That plan should be submitted within the next 30 days.  DTSC has concurred on the use of the herbicide Aquamaster and is going to look at studying a ten to twelve foot buffer zone around the edges of the restored upland plot area.  The UC has submitted the time critical removal plan that dealt with the Forest Products Laboratory area.  So we have to review that and make sure that everything is correct there.  

The last item deals with that UC has submitted the soil sampling results for an area in the central bellow near Building 112 in preparation for the installation of research on related wind turbines.  And as part of constructing of the wind turbines they have to build footings, and they need to make sure that everything is okay in those areas before they do that construction.  So they hope that any excavation of work associated with construction improvements will occur at the end of this month.  

BioRad, we are still reviewing the ground work pilot study.  The West Shores.  The topic on this one is DTSC has been informed that the Toll Brothers project proposed for the West Shores is no longer going to be moving forward.  And DTSC will be working with the master developer to deal with the rest of the soils on that property.  So I am not sure what they are going to do, but they will be working with the City Planning Department and the Redevelopment Agency as part of whatever will happen on the property.  DTSC is also currently reviewing a revised remedial action plan associated with Area T dealing with the floating petroleum products.  We hope to have that out for public review in the middle of May.  The five year review is continuing on.  

Harbor Way South, I wanted to point out on the front table and everybody in the room that we have put out, beginning tomorrow, a    the amendment to remedial action plan associated with this project.  What this is is… and it is going to be out for public review.  And we are looking at having a public meeting on April 24th.

MS. PADGETT:  Could you point to it on the map over here?

MS. COOK:  Let's see, Harbor Way South is right over here.

MR. LINSLEY:  The actual site is approximately here.

MR. THOMPSON:  Come over to Knox Freeway.  It is the first…   

MS. COOK:  Harbor Way South, there is a map on the back of the fact sheet.  What is being proposed here was we found… this is an orphan site which means that we don't have any responsible parties that we can require to do the necessary cleanup.  And we have found sufficient amount of money for us to go back and do a… basically do a soil removal to remove the metals that are on the property and then… and we are going to do some groundwater because it does have low levels of solvents in it.  And we are expecting that activity will result and we will be able to do the deed restriction that we currently have on the property.  But, again, the public… the document is… the public comment period starts tomorrow and runs to May 12th.  The meeting is scheduled at the Marina Bay Yacht Club Building on April 24th.  Hopefully we will see you there.  

Liquid Gold, they basically did groundwater monitoring and the results are very similar to the work done in the past.  Stege Property Pistol Range.  Again, we are just… we are waiting for the additional sampling that was done.  We are waiting for that data to come in and, again, this will be another removal action work plan that will be coming out probably in the June time period, looking at removing the lead contaminated soil.  In particular one that we'll be doing for sure is the back stop area.  And the Blair Landfill area, we are waiting to get the soil gas test results back on that one.  

And that is the conclusion of my report, and I will turn this over to Doug.

MR. MOSTELLER:  Hi.  I am Doug Mosteller with Cherokee, and I am going to be very, very brief because, as we talked about last month, Michelle King, who is one of our consultants from EKI, Erler & Kalinowski, is going to give a presentation on the Human Health Risk Assessment.  

Briefly, in the past 30 days, one of things with respect to field activity we have seen is that we have had to go out and re-sample some pore water out in the marsh.  The laboratory kind of messed up our samples, so that was not a good phone call for me to receive.  But nonetheless, we are back out there to recollect these pore water samples and send them to the laboratory for analysis and also provided Groundwater Monitoring report and worked with our Human Health Risk Assessment, which Michelle is about to present, and the Feasibility Study Remedial Action Plan are ongoing.  So I really would like to give Michelle as much time as possible.

MS. KING:  Hi.  Thanks for having me.  My presentation, as you recall some of you might have heard me talk back in August, for an overview of the risk assessment before it was actually submitted to DTSC.  And then I think you heard in January, Adrienne provided comments on the risk assessment.  So now I don't know if this is really in order or not.  But we are going to provide an overview of the risk assessment.  

So we have to do a technical thing here first.  Okay.  So I'll try to provide background on the risk assessment process.  Here is an outline of my talk first describing what a Human Health Risk Assessment is, describing the results of the risk assessment, a little about the site specific goals we developed and the next steps of where we go after the risk assessment is complete.  Can everyone hear me okay?  I don't know who I am projecting to.  

Just to refresh everyone's memory on the DTSC process, we started out with the Remedial Investigation.  Actually, I should have done Current Conditions first because those came first for this project.  But the Remedial Investigation, Doug, at the last few CAG meetings, has provided overviews on all those.  And basically the data collected in the RIs are used as the basis of the risk assessment, which is what we are going to talk about today.  

And in the process of doing this risk assessment we did meet with DTSC over a series of meetings in developing a lot of the assumptions that were used in it.  We also took into account at the time we had the comments that the CAG made on RIs that had some risk assessment elements in that.  I think they were primarily Jean's comments.  And those were incorporated into the formulation of the risk assessment.  Since it's been submitted we have received comments from DTSC on it, which I will talk about later.  

Once the risk assessment is done we then use the results of that to feed into the feasibility study and Remedial Action Plan.  The risk assessment tells you if you have issues, if you have potential human health issues, and with that it can guide you as to where the problems are on the site that require further evaluation.  Following the feasibility study, the Remedial Action Plan, you actually design the remedies and then go through the implementation process.  And there is ongoing monitoring in the case of the sites that will occur throughout the process. 

So a little bit about what is a Human Health Risk Assessment.  It characterizes the health risk to humans, so that is people that are basically at the site, from chemicals that are currently present in the environment.  And then the risk managers, which in this case could be DTSC and Lynn and me and Barbara and DTSC staff, will use the results of the risk assessment to basically figure out how to protect the humans from exposure to chemicals in the environment.  So it leads into the feasibility study.  

What a risk assessment typically does not do is assess historical exposures from, you know, past exposures, and typically it does not… it is not used to assess risk during the actual remediation process.  Those risks are usually assessed through air monitoring that is performed during a remedial action.  The other thing for this particular site is that not included in our risk assessment is any evaluation whatsoever of the radiological issues, and that is primarily because, as you all know, that is an ongoing parallel path.  

What we had discussed with DTSC on the rad issues is if, indeed, at the end of the historical assessment and any sampling that gets done on the site, that those results would be used, if needed, to prepare an addendum to this risk assessment.  So what do we consider when we do a risk assessment?  There are three main factors.  The first is how much chemical is actually present in the environment, so how much chemical do you find in the soil, the water, and the air.  First you have to have the chemicals present.  The second is what is the inherent toxicity of the chemicals.  Some chemicals are more toxic and more carcinogenic than others.  And then the third is actually how much exposure there is, because you have to have some type of exposure or contact with the air, soil, or water in order for there to ultimately be a risk.  

This actually… this slide is one that I brought on a poster board back in August, so it might look a little bit familiar to people.  It was three months ago now.  This slide describes the overall risk assessment process.  The first step is the data collection and evaluation.  That, really, in this case, is the remedial investigation process.  Then we split into two parallel paths.  We have the exposure assessment and the toxicity assessment.  The exposure assessment is where we look at the populations who might be exposed, how much they might be exposed, and, you know, what the chemicals are and all that… what is the exposure side.  The toxicity side is how toxic or carcinogenic is a particular chemical in the environment.  

These two factors get combined together to actually calculate the risk in the risk characterization.  Then in this case we then used the result of the risk assessment to calculate site specific goals.  And site specific goals are basically levels of the different chemicals that could be present in the environment that should not pose an adverse health risk.  

So the first step, as indicated in the prior slide, is the data collection and evaluation.  And as I stated it, this is where we use the data from the RI, and that provides the data that are represented in the conditions in the various media, in the soil, in the soil gas and groundwater.  And just to refresh everyone's memories from the last two meetings, the primary conditions that were found in the RIs were the metals in soil.  

We are all aware of the treated cinders on Lot Three as well as metals on Lots One and Two in the railroad spurs.  There are PCBs and VOCs in soil, and that is primarily in the PCB/VOC area in Lot One.  There is the pending RAW to be implemented.  Then we have VOCs in groundwater.  VOCs are present in groundwater in various areas throughout the site.  The last primary condition out there are the pesticides and metals in groundwater on Lot Three.  Of course there are many other chemicals detected on the site.  These were really the main findings of the RI reports.  

The reality is we use the entire data set.  It is not like we… to formulate the risk assessment… it is not like we initially just pare it down.  We try to look at the entire data set.  So the exposure assessment components, this is where we look at, first of all, what is the site like, how deep is the ground water, are there surface water bodies here that we need to look at, is the soil exposed or capped.  There is just different things we look at in the physical setting of the site.  

Then we look at the populations who might be exposed to the chemicals, we look at the exposure pathways, so this is how they might be exposed, we estimate the concentrations, so this is the "how much chemical is present" in the various media, and then we combine those together to estimate the actual calculated chemical intakes.  

We looked at three different primary exposure scenarios.  The first was what would the risk be during construction, what would be the risk for a future commercial industrial or residential development, that the site is uncapped, so, in other words, there are no restrictions on how the soil is handled or treated, and then a future commercial or residential development that the site is actually capped.  

And I have some schematics that will kind of, hopefully, better explain what this all means.  So during construction what we looked at was on the left side, is the onsite.  So we have a worker, construction workers, that basically could have direct contact with the soil.  They could ingest the soil.  They can have skin contact with the soil.  They can breathe in dust with chemicals absorbed onto the dust.  They can inhale VOCs that might be present.  

Also, just to get into the nitty gritty, we had a scenario where there was a trench where the worker could be in contact with the groundwater, and I just realized we left off thermal contact with groundwater.  That is a pathway we looked at.  On the right hand side of the slide we are showing what the potential pathways are for off site population.  So during construction we are looking at if someone is working or living in proximity to the site what their exposures might be.  

So for the workers we were looking at properties immediately adjacent to the site.  We know we have Harbor Front to the east and the UC Richmond Field Station on the west.  For the residents, we looked at residents that would be living on the north side of Highway 580 as well as residents in Marina Bay.  And so for these off site exposures over here, because they are not physically at the site, they don't have the same kind of direct contact with the chemicals that are in the soil.  The type of exposure that an off site population could get during construction is basically airborne dust and airborne molecules that could blow over to the adjacent properties or across the freeway.  That is why we see inhalation pathways for exposure in here for off site.  

Then the future post construction scenario, the first one we looked at is an uncapped site.  And what we mean by an uncapped site is that people that are outside, whether they are living or working at the site, could have direct contact with the soil.  That means they could ingest the soil, they could have skin contact with it, they can breathe dust containing chemicals that could be blowing around in the air, and we also looked at a maintenance worker as well that could have direct contact with the soil.  

These same people that are working at the site or living at the site, then hopefully some type of development would be inside the building, and there is some vapor intrusion pathway where the VOCs, the volatile chemicals, could volatilize up, come up through cracks or conduits in the slab and be inhaled, VOCs, in the indoor pathway.  This is uncapped where you have potential exposure.  

Then we have the future construction of an assumed hypothetical cap site.  So here we have the cap, and what you will notice is that we no longer have this direct contact pathway.  The people that would be working at the site, living at the site, going about their daily activity, would have no direct contact with the soil because it is all capped.  The only pathway that they would have exposure to would be the same inhalation of the volatile chemicals, because those… you can still have small cracks and penetrations in slabs and things like that, so we don't eliminate that pathway.  

What is not shown of that slide but evaluated is a future maintenance worker or groundskeeper that most of the time would not be penetrating the cap, but periodically would have to go through to fix a utility or do something where they could be… almost like a construction worker could be contacting groundwater, could be dealing with the soil underneath the cap.  We also looked at a recreational user as well.  

So this next table is very complicated looking, but it is a way I want to provide for detail so people can understand.  What we have down on the left, we have the different populations, so we have during the construction, post construction without a cap, post construction with a cap, and all the different populations. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  Could you stand to the side?  I can't see.  

MS. KING:  Yeah.  I will move my computer here.  

MS. PADGETT:  How about a chair?  

MS. KING:  I am uncomfortable sitting.  Okay.  Anyway, going across the top… I really need a new battery too.  I can't blame my husband for that.  Over here we have all of the different potential exposure pathways on the top.  If there is a black dot, it means that pathway is what we call a complete pathway.  That means that there could be that type of exposure for the given population.  And my intent is, like I said, not to go through the detail, but it makes it so that you can go back and you look at the pictures and you can better understand, really, the pathways we looked at.  

So that first half of it is the whole exposure part of it.  The other part of the equation is what we call the risk characterization.  This is where we look at, as I said earlier, how toxic or carcinogenic the different chemicals are.  We then calculate risk to the individual chemicals that are detected on the site for all of the different pathways.  So let's say for a resident, they will have numbers from every chemical that we have included, they will have a number for the risk due to inhalation of VOCs, inhalation of particulates, ingestion of soil particles and dermal contact with soil.  Those all get added up across the pathways and for all of the different chemicals to calculate what we call the cumulative risk. 

The important part of a risk assessment is where we discuss variables and some of the uncertainties in the risk assessment.  When we use the word "uncertainty," what we mean, really, is where sometimes there is, let's say, conservative assumptions made in terms of how toxic a chemical is, or we look at the range of assumptions when we do certain modeling efforts to try to do what we call a sensitivity analysis where we make things less conservative and more conservative.  And we evaluate… in this case we looked at some of the off site exposures after construction in a more qualitative way.  So we use this sort of last part of the risk assessment as a sort of means to provide… how do I say it… a little more context to the overall risk assessment in terms of what it really means.  

And so to try to summarize a result, it is very hard.  If anyone has seen the risk assessment, I know Adrienne has looked at it in great detail... it is a three volume, ten inches of paper document.  So when we have all those individual chemicals for all the different pathways you produce table upon table.  So it is a very    very enormous effort to produce it, to review it and then to try to distill it down to one slide.  

But this slide does try to characterize the main conclusions.  So we have the first… the different population that we look at on the left side, and we have the different scenarios, during construction, post construction uncapped, post construction capped.  And what I tried to do was identify what were the main chemicals that were the risk drivers that resulted in what we call a significant risk out there.  And we might ask what is a significant risk.  In this case a significant risk is increase in potential cancer risk of one in a million or what we call for the non carcinogens, a hazard in risk greater than one.  The first one, the earth work remediation construction workers, we have arsenic as the primary risk driver.  PCBs on Lot One and the PCB/VOC area were also big contributors.  And then, to a much lesser extent but more above ten to minus six risk we had very few cases of VOCs.

For the off site population, so these are the off site workers adjacent to the site, none of the population of the areas of the site pose a significant risk to off site workers except for arsenic on Lot Three.  And for off site residents, and these are residents that would be north of 580 or in the Marina Bay, none of the risks were above any of the target levels.  We don't evaluate the construction scenario for these post construction, so that is why there is dashes there.  

Then we move to the post construction scenario.  We have the residents, the workers, the groundskeeper residence workers and onsite recreational user.  For the uncapped scenario you can see we have the list of chemicals that are the drivers, we have the arsenic in the soil, the PCBs in the Lot One, PCB in this area, and then we have the VOCs in groundwater.  And that is really consistent except for the recreational user doesn't have as much VOC exposure.  

And the dramatic thing that we see… in our opinion it is dramatic    is that when you go to the capped scenario and when you take out the direct contact, you now have eliminated exposure to the non volatiles, to the arsenic and to the PCBs, and what you have left is primarily the VOCs in groundwater that are still posing some risk at the site for the maintenance worker, because they do have periodic contact with the soil.  That is why you still see arsenic coming up.  In the capped scenario there is no significant risk for the recreational user.  

What does all this mean when you put it all together?  In a way, what these risks during construction, what it tells us is that there is no assumed controls in sight for this construction in these two risk assessments.  So we know that we will want to make sure there is good dust control, that there is decontamination, that there is air monitoring, and that you have workers who are appropriately health and safety trained that are working on the site because there is this significant risk.  And we know, first of all, for protecting the onsite workers we have to do these things, but we need to be careful of what would be leaving the site.  So there would have to be air monitoring, and you want to have those same control measurements to dry to minimize dust generation and things like that. 

What it tells us in the post construction scenario is that, as we are all aware for the site, that one does need to look at potential remedies to try to cut off these pathways or remediate a site in the manner where there is not a significant risk.  I did want to spend a minute talking about some of the off site populations because I know that is a concern for some of the people in this room.  

As I mentioned, during construction we evaluated directly in the risk assessment.  We calculated through air modeling risk to off site residents and off site workers.  We found there was no significant risk to the residents during the presumed construction scenario, and the only place where we had a significant risk for the commercial industrial workers near the site would be in the vicinity of Lot Three.  For post construction, what we did was we focused on the onsite populations because anything offsite would be significantly lower than what we found onsite.  But we still knew and know it is a concern for people as to what they might be getting offsite for post construction. 

So what we did was we looked at the outdoor airborne concentrations and the risks for the outdoor scenarios.  And we looked at for the particulates and for the VOCs that could be in outdoor air.  And you make the assumption what is in that outdoor air could blow over to the adjacent properties.  And there is… basically what we found is there is no significant risk to the onsite populations due to what is in the ambient or outdoor air, so, therefore, no significant risk to the offsite populations.  And this assessment is really when you look at it it is applicable to, really, what the current condition is today for people in adjacent properties.  And actually it is almost really the condition we have today on Lot Three, is that the site is actually capped with a temporary cap.  So it is not like we have particulates with metals from the treated cinder area that could be blowing off the site.  So the assessment we did really is conservative… that the likelihood of exposure could be coming from the volatiles, and those risks are very, very low.  

So with that, then, we calculated what we are calling the site specific goals.  And the site specific goals are used to help identify where areas in the site where further assessment for potential remedial action is warranted.  And these site specific goals, we had different types in the different media for soil, soil gas, and groundwater.  And they are largely based on the human health risk.  So it is sort of like a back calculation.  You sort of say how much, let's say, arsenic or PCB or whatever could you have, hypothetically, in the soil that would result in a significant risk.  

PCBs was a bad example.  Sorry I said that.  But basically you have how much a safe level would be in the soil or in the water for VOCs.  The water numbers, also we looked at published criteria.  We looked at things like water standard in HCLs and looked at water that could be migrating into the marsh where you could have potential impacts of metals, let's say, in groundwater or ecological receptors in the marsh.  

We also calculated leaching to groundwater numbers where we try to protect leach into groundwater.  Also we look at arsenic background concentrations because arsenic is one where just the levels that are present in background soil, you calculate a hypothetical risk that is, you know, greater than target levels by a significant part.  So a common cleanup goal for arsenic is what is present at background levels. 

So with this, in Appendix L of the risk assessment, we have a lot of figures in there.  And those figures, what we did was we compared the site data to the site specific goals.  And there is all kind of color dots that show you the areas of the chemicals above the site specific goals.  And these areas and this information is being fed into the feasibility study to look at areas to be assessed for remediation.  

So what are our next steps?  We submitted the draft risk assessment back in September and received comments from DTSC in early February.  And those comments… tried to incorporate the comments that came from the CAG's consultants.  And so we are in the process of responding to those comments.  Once they get submitted to DTSC they will review them, and if it is acceptable we will work on the process of having DTSC approve the report and prepare… DTSC will issue a fact sheet.  And then we have a Feasibility Study and draft Remedial Action Plan that is being developed based on the findings of the risk assessment.  And then with it we'll continue ongoing groundwater monitoring.  Okay.  So I am happy to take questions.  Hopefully I did okay on time.

MS. WALLIS:  Question from Mr. Thompson. 

MR. THOMPSON:  Getting back to part of that… the part where you was talking about the…   

MS. KING:  Do you want to tell me the slide number? 

MR. THOMPSON:  The PCB.  You know, a lot of that PCB was in transformers here.  And it was an oil base.  Now how are you compensating for that oil, this PCB that is in the oil that could be traces of it tracked out or carried out on the person's shoes or what have you and things along that line? 

MS. KING:  So you are really talking about past exposures to PCBs? 

MR. THOMPSON:  Well, most of the transformers that furnished the power over there in those plants, that's what they were filled with. 

MS. KING:  Yeah.  That is right.  So basically what would happen is at this point there are no PCB transformers left at the site. 

MR. THOMPSON:  But they also leaked.  

MS. KING:  That's right.  You are exactly right.  So in the PCB area in the northwestern portion of Lot One, so over here, that is an area where a transformer likely leaked.  There is very high concentrations of PCB in the soil there.  48 milligrams per kilogram is the highest concentration.  So that is an area where the concentrations are high enough, and that area in particular will be remediated.  

What we also found are PCBs present in the treated cinders.  There are PCBs there as well.  And that is accounted for in the risk assessment, and that will be carried through into the Feasibility Study to assess what needs to be done about them.  So whatever remedy is put in place, whether it is in the case of a RAW area where you excavate it out to a cleanup level or under, let's say, the cap scenario where it gets capped, the idea is you try to bring it down to levels so that it is either levels that are safe from a risk assessment or so you are not tracking it or contacting it. 

MR. THOMPSON:  I would also like for you… where the Regatta, where they put in that overpass over Knox Freeway there, that was contaminated.  And that was a great dispute in there before they could finish that construction due to the fuel tanks for the government housing that they had out there.  When they removed the tanks out of the ground, they stacked them all up right where Regatta comes across there.  And that held up that project of that portion of the freeway for a number of years before they could finalize it.  Plus they also had some pumps there for that groundwater.  Do you have any information on that?  

MS. KING:  I have no information about what happened in the vicinity of Regatta.  So there are actually pumps that pump groundwater under the freeway there?

MR. THOMPSON:  Yes. 

MS. COOK:  As part of the construction the freeway is so much lower than the groundwater, CalTrans, as part of its construction, actually has a series of groundwater wells where they actually do pump, I think, and they do pump it.  They do treat it. 

MR. THOMPSON:  What I am getting at is that was contaminated due to them taking these fuel tanks out of the ground that furnished heat for the projects that are at Seaport, and instead of them moving them out of there completely they stacked them there.  And they were up there for five, eight years or something along that line until they finalized whatever they were going to do with them.

MS. COOK:  I know they had to work with the Water Board because as part of it the petroleum contaminated soil was actually also dealt with by the Water Board.  And DTSC looked at this… and you are really dating us.  This is the late 1980s, early '90s when all this occurred.  We can go back and find that.  But I know we do have that information, and I know that it is discussed briefly in the RAW for the Harbor Way South because the wells go all the way along. 

MR. THOMPSON:  One other thing.  She was talking about the vapors, whatever, coming from…    

MS. KING:  VOCs?

MR. THOMPSON:  Yeah.  All of that area that is north of. 

MS. KING:  Do you want to point?

MR. THOMPSON:  North of 42nd.  All of that is north of 42nd Street    47th Street.  Let's see, where are we here?  Is that the… what is the pass right there?  This right here.  It is the pass… Bayview, right.  Well, everything that is in this area here, is downwind from the site here.  

MS. KING:  Yes.  That is correct.  

MR. THOMPSON:  And during the '40s fog used to be very heavy, blowing across here.  And it was so heavy that you would have water droppings on your eyelashes.  So a lot of that contamination is in that vicinity, in that area.

MS. COOK:  But as Michelle described earlier, the purpose of a risk assessment is to only look at the site as a whole and not the historical uses on the property.  We will have to go back and look at those parts of the property as part of a different project. 

MR. THOMPSON:  And I notice you made mention too that off site residents… I have a family member that… well, not a family member, but a next door neighbor, he would bring his clothes home.  He worked for sulfur chemicals, and he was a pipe fitter.  Right now most of his offsprings are suffering with eczema, all broke out on the arms.  And one to the grandkids now, they have to feed him through his stomach.  He can't eat through his mouth. 

MS. COOK:  Right.  

MS. KING:  As I said, this assessment is looking not at the effects of sort of past exposures; it is what… during construction what would happen if you had a construction project and what could blow across a freeway as a result of that project.

MR. MOSTELLER:  It is looking today and forward. 

MS. COOK:  Mr. Thompson, what we would have to do is we would need to bring back Dr. Marilyn Underwood and have them talk to you, these people, with regards to the impacts.  Because that is the agency that looks at the historical type of activities.  In other words we can go back and ask their staff to get ahold of you again. 

MR. THOMPSON:  I just don't want a snow job to be given here, that this here toxicity is no minor… that it is not going to cause any health problems.

MS. COOK:  I agree.  And I understand that, but the problem is the way the process is set out.  You know, my agency looks at what exists today and forward.  And Dr. Underwood from the Department of Public Health looks at the historical type exposures.  So we are going to go back and ask them to get back in contact with you to see if this is additional information that they need to fold into their evaluations.  

MR. THOMPSON:  What do you have to measure what you are saying by?

MS. COOK:  Mine is set out by statute and law as to how I look at today forward.  They look at it from the past.

MS. WALLIS:  I see another hand from a CAG member.  I want to entertain a couple more CAG questions and then ask for comments or questions from the general audience.  So Mr. Mayes. 

MR. MAYES:  This is a quick correlation.  You stated that during the construction risk assessment based for offsite inhabitants is considered negligible because onsite is considered negligible because if you are onsite you are getting the brunt…   

MS. KING:  After construction. 

MR. MAYES:  During construction, if you go to that same slide… it says the same things, during construction and after construction.  Onsite is getting clean wind, coming off of the Bay and that air is going to be relatively clean carrying particulate matter across the freeway where it is going to die out and eventually fall.  If there is heavy fog and moisture content in the air it is going to fall over there.  So simply stating there is low concentrations or clean air on site doesn't mean that across the freeway it is clean.  If you are not testing that ground or soil or anything else over there for any kind of comparative connection, I think you are missing the boat.  To assume that just because the air onsite is clean it is not picking something up from that site and moving it over...

MS. KING:  Let me tell you the way the calculation works.  For onsite during construction what we do is we model certain emission.  If we say there is a certain amount of dust that is going to be blowing off of… and coming off of our site and that dust, the concentrations of chemicals that are in the dust are based on what you see in the soil.  So if you actually look at the… for the construction worker, the risk to the airborne exposure for the construction worker who is on the site is much higher than what you see, then what we do is we enter that airborne concentration into a model.  

And we model based on climatic conditions and weather conditions for climatic meteorological data that is collected from the adjacent Richmond Field Station site.  So we have data that is really proximate to the site, and we use those conditions to model what could blow across the freeway.  So we start out… this is during the construction scenario.  We start out with the contaminated onsite air, and we are looking at what across the freeway, what the people can be exposed to across the freeway.  

So what is different in the post construction scenario is, again, it is similar in that what we are looking at, what could possibly be generated from the site, so it is an incremental exposure.  We don't care that what flows onsite is dirty or clean anywhere.  We are looking at what is being potentially caused by our site.

MS. WALLIS:  I saw another hand over on this side.  Yes, Mr. Schwab?

MR. SCHWAB:  A slightly different question.  The concept of the cap I find puzzling.  So what we are saying is there are contaminants in the ground, but for whatever reason we are not going to remove them.  What we are going to do is essentially seal them up and leave them there. 

MS. KING:  It is an option. 

MR. SCHWAB:  Okay.  But when we take that option, isn't that just leaving the cleanup of those substances to somebody 100 years from now?  I mean, it seems to me like a temporary measure at best.  That is the first question.  The second is a corollary to that which is that we live in a seismically very active zone, and all of this area is bay fill or mud.  So that would makes it seem to me as though any mechanical thing that creates a cap, whether concrete or whatever, could easily be ruined the day after it was finished by a seismic event.  So could you address both of those?  

MS. KING:  The first one is a cap, you know, is it a temporary remedy?  Is it a permanent remedy?  Whether or not one caps the site will be assessed as part of the feasibility study.  So in a sense it is a bit premature to say, "Yeah, that's what we are doing." 

MR. SCHWAB:  I get that.  

MS. KING:  But the concept is if that would be the selected remedy, with it goes long term ongoing obligations to maintain that cap.  There are deed restrictions.  There are inspections that would have to be performed, maintenance that would have to be done, requirements and disclosure beneath the cap.  So there are definitely ongoing obligations.  So those are accounted for in the feasibility study.  That is part of what DTSC assesses and weighs up.  

But the concept that if there is an earthquake and, yes, you could obviously have some cracking and stuff in a cap that could happen.  But to have a catastrophic release after an earthquake… it is not…    it is just not plausible.  But after an earthquake, yes, you would want to go and inspect and repair areas.  

MS. WALLIS:  Mr. Kim's hand is up from the CAG.  Can I get a sense of how many questions might arise from the audience?  I saw one hand here, one, two, three.  Because we are at the end of our Q&A period.  So I need to ask how the group how you would like to extend the Q&A or what your suggestion is for the use of the time.

MS. GRAVES:  So… motion for fifteen minutes or ten minutes?  What sounds reasonable, ten minutes additional time for the Q&A? 

MAYOR MCLAUGHLIN:  Second it.  

MS. GRAVES:  All in favor?  Any opposed?  Motion passes for ten more minutes.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  So we'll extent this to 7:40.  Mr. Kim, and then we'll go to the audience for at least the questions that were identified. 

MR. KIM:  This will relate to Mr. Schwab's second question.  I am also an owner or resident of Marina Bay, but as a resident you have to have flood insurance because there is a deed restriction.  I believe the whole area is in a flood zone.  Do you put that as a risk assessment?  Because earthquake, soil liquefaction and earthquake insurance is optional to us, but flood insurance is mandatory by the City.  

MS. KING:  I don't know, I mean, in terms of… ultimately in terms of what types of requirements would be for a development depends on the type of development and things like that.  And that is not something that we would evaluate in our risk assessment.  I think that would be something that would come out, presumably, the titled process.  

MR. KIM:  Let's say if it is a flooded zone, then the concept of onsite residential, onsite commercial is not just a VOC for the post construction, but the arsenic and VOCs…   

MS. COOK:  If it is part of the uncapped site?

MR. KIM:  No.  On the capped site, even. 

MS. LAPIERRE:  Because you are saying water, in the event of a flood basically…    

MR. WEINER:  The analysis of the flood zone. 

MS. COOK:  Typically the water runs out into the… in this case either the marsh or the fresh water lagoons because of the way it is set up for storm waters.  But it is not going to have… it is not going to, based on the site of the cap, you know, those are the things that are going to feed into the cap design as a way of making sure there is not a great amount of water that is going into it.  That is going to be a design parameter if that ends up being the selective method. 

MR. KIM:  Let's say if the cap is on the top of the whole ground and the cap is not containing the side of the cap, it is just capping the side, on uncapped land, if this water is raising up and there is no barrier on the side, it would just flow to the other side. 

MS. COOK:  I didn't realize this was in a flood zone, actually.

MS. WALLIS:  All right.  There was a hand here.  I will ask you for the transcriptionist to state your name, please. 

MS. ROBINSON:  My name is Bee Robinson.  I live right there at the end of Bayview on the north side of the freeway, yeah, right there.  But my question is… is the people… you say you took a… you were assessing the risk to the people who live over there.

A.  Yes.

Q.  What kind of people do you have living over there then, because what is in the air is going to do me in, and it might not hurt him at all.  Who did you compare?  You certainly didn't come to our neighborhood and do any health assessments or any assessments of what kind of people live there.  

MS. KING:  When one does a risk assessment like this, what you do is look at exposure to children, and you look at exposure to adults.  And we use what our published exposure assumptions are in terms of how much air someone breathes, in this case how much air someone breathes… a breathing rate for them.  And the assumptions are based on… same thing with the concentrations… are based on what we call a reasonable maximum exposure.  The idea is we are trying to develop what we think is going to be a conservative assessment.  The toxicity assessments are also developed to try to consider sensitive populations.  Can I say in particular it covers and addresses the people that are exactly living north of the freeway?  No, I can't.  

MS. ROBINSON:  So in other words this is theoretical?  It doesn't really cover the people that are there?

MS. KING:  We follow the standard of practice for doing human risk for site cleanups in the State of California.  

MS. ROBINSON:  Okay.

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Rabovsky and Mr. Weiner's hand.  Dr. Rabovsky? 

DR. RABOVSKY:  I would like to make a few quick comments and then questions.  First, I want to back up what Mr. Schwab had said concerning about the stability of the capped system when we have toxins in the ground.  I was at a conference a few weeks ago, and someone was speaking about toxic sites that had been supposedly remediated.  And the remediation was through storage in the ground in some sort of a cap and a liner, whatever.  And after a while they always break down.  They always break down.  It has to be considered in all of these.  They are not totally stable.  That is one point.  I have a question.  You have been talking about PCBs and PCBs in soil.  What was your comparison value?  I looked at a couple of the documents, and I found them very confusing.  What you said (inaudible).  You are looking at toxicity values.  What values were you using?  What was your source?

MS. KING:  When we evaluated it we calculated the risk calculations.  I'm sorry.  I might digress because I know Jean can speak the language.  We used a slope factor, I believe, of two.

DR. RABOVSKY:  I am talking about the soil levels, not the concentration in soil but the soil.  I have been attending these meetings, and I have been looking at documents in which a comparison value… DTSC you have two values for soil.  Okay.  You have the TSCA values for soil.  And you have different sources that you can use when you get …    

MS. KING:  You are saying what is the SSG. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  What are you using?  

MS. KING:  We are using the TSCA level of one.  But let me finish.  What we are actually doing for the work following this is we are actually working with EPA and doing a PCB specific risk assessment for Lots One, Two, and Three that will be carried into the feasibility study.

DR. RABOVSKY:  Will you still be using that TSCA level of one?  That is my question.  Because that… I have even talked to people, "Where does this come from?  What is the basis of that value?  The value of that comes out of the CHSSL documents.  At least we know that there was a consideration of health effects, to come up with a number, and that is a more health protective number.  I don't know where the TSCA value comes from, what is the basis of it, and I have talked to a couple of people who are familiar with the TSCA value, but they also, when they tried to go back to find out what is the basis of that value, no one seems to know. 

MS. COOK:  You were doing a risk assessment with EPA?

MS. LAPIERRE:  Can you explain that to us a little bit, Michelle, what it is that you are doing, moving forward, that maybe most of us don't quite know? 

MS. KING:  Yeah.  It is premature at this point to really talk about because it is not like we have had…   

MS. COOK:  You are looking at doing a risk assessment with US-EPA after the closure.  That is a risk assessment following RAP.  TSCA, per one, is based on a specific criteria.  High occupancy, it is going to be used for this and this.  And had they set a goal of one    nothing above one.  And then you don't have to do a risk assessment.  If they are going to do a risk assessment then they follow the RAP requirements.  

MS. KING:  Basically in Section 761.C there is an ability to do a site specific risk evaluation under TSCA where we are going to take the data and we are looking at the data for the site by lot, and we are evaluating what needs to be done over EPA oversight.  And I don't want to say whether or not they are using one, or if they are not using one, because I don't know fully what EPA is going to want to do or not do. 

MS. LAPIERRE:  So there is a whole different risk assessment going on for PCBs separate from one you already did, if I am understanding you correctly. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  Okay.  So I am actually just trying to say this value that you are getting out of TSCA is not a health protective value at all.  There are always concerns of any toxicity value to totally be health protective.  You do the best you can based on the data and the studies that are out there.  And you hope to be able to protect sensitive populations.  You hope that you can do that.  But what we do know is that the TSCA value doesn't seem to be a public… a health protective value, and I do not know why it is being used in these considerations.  But we have talked about this before, and I don't want to use a lot more time to go around in circles. 

MS. KING:  I will make one more comment, though, on the PCBs because in the RAW we did do a probabilistic risk assessment where we showed that for residential use a concentration of 1.2 milligrams per kilogram would be health protective. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  I think I commented… I can't remember what I said.  All I remember is if we are talking about the same thing, there was exposure pathways that we dropped out.  I don't want to go into it now because I don't have it in front of me, so I can't really speak to it.  From every one more question and then…    

MS. WALLIS:  We have reached the two minute time limit for Ms. Rabovsky. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  I want other people to have time.  I will stop.  Every meeting that I have been to whenever there has been a discussion of exposure discussion issues come out, "How well characterized is the site?"  If you don't have proper exposure data, by the time you pile the toxicity values, what does it mean, this characterization?  So my question is how confident are you?  Are you still working with exposure data that everyone seems to feel represents an un… improperly or incompletely characterized site because if that characterization is not complete to the best it can be, then all of this other stuff isn't going to amount to a hill of beans because the information going into it is incomplete. 

MS. COOK:  I will answer the questions.  

MS. KING:  I'm happy to, but will let…    

MS. COOK:  For the Department to approve a Remedial Action Report the Department had to sign off that the site has been adequately characterized… the RI reports that it has been adequately characterized to define what the problem is in all of the media and all of… and with all of the potential contaminants except for radiation.  And that is what the RI says… is that… is we believe this is finished.  Okay. 

DR. RABOVSKY:  That answers the question as far as you are concerned.

MS. WALLIS:  We have reached the end of the extended Q&A period.  So what is the direction of the group?

MR. ROBINSON:  Do we need more time?  

MS. WALLIS:  There was at least one more question identified from the audience. 

MR. LINSLEY:  Let's let them ask it. 

MR. ROBINSON:  Let's make a motion to extend it five minutes.  Are we all in favor?  Yeah.

MS. WALLIS:  Mr. Weiner?  

MR. WEINER:  I have one observation and one comment and one question.  The observation is that the TSCA number as not being a health protective number has come up time after time and after time.  And I would think that one could put it to rest by revisiting the health risk assessment using whatever model you want, whether it is probabilistic or whatever RAP required.  But it seems to me abandoning the TSCA regulatory level would be the appropriate thing to do because it makes the whole health risk assessment less credible.  My comment on the cap, whatever people may think of a cap, the usual question is not whether a cap works at first.  As someone once told me about oil refineries, they are the best thing in the world when they are finished.  The question is maintenance.  

And the problem with a cap is making sure that you have competent personnel to assure maintenance and enough money to assure maintenance if it is a "forever" cap.  There are some things where things degrade.  Arsenic doesn't degrade.  So the question here is if it were… if it's not for a health risk assessment, if it is for remedy, if you are looking at a cap you have to make sure there is perpetual funding.  And you don't have some homeowner association responsible for it.  

The question I have has to do… because Michelle indicated, and it sort of hit something in my consciousness, that there has been a concern about off site risks, not historical, current.  And what this chart showed is there are no onsite risks during construction or post from VOCs.  But I thought, and I could just be wrong, because I don't know this stuff… I thought that there might be a plume of VOCs that were under some of the offsite businesses.  And my understanding was that Cherokee was not doing that risk assessment.  

But when Michelle said that her risk assessment feeds into the FS RAPS I get worried.  Because if we are not really assessing all of the risks, the off site receptors and the VOCs from that plume, we have a problem.  That is my question.  

MS. KLEIN:  My name is Kimmy Klein, and I am the toxicologist for DTSC.  And it is true that the Harbor Front property was actually investigated under the oversight of DTSC and with our funding from DTSC.  And a screening level health risk assessment was done using those data.  But what the DTSC did was we collected groundwater data, soil matrix data, and soil gas data from all parts of the Harbor Front properties, on kind of a grid circumstance.  

And using those data, we did a screening level health risk assessment, which means that we used very conservative assumptions with respect to how people would be exposed to those contaminants found in those media and then determined what the risk would be.  We determined that, as was earlier stated, actually what is… what is under the Harbor Front property is some groundwater that has been… that has VOCs or contaminant in it.  

So basically the only complete exposure pathway that could be possible at the Harbor Front property would be the intrusion of these vapors coming up from the subsurface into indoor air.  So the indoor air pathway is the only complete exposure pathway, and that is the exposure pathway that we assess in the screening level risk assessment.  

The results of that, of this screening level risk assessment, indicated that if you use the modeling parameters only, that the VOCs that you found… that we found in the groundwater would pose a risk above one in a million.  However, we also took soil vapor samples, which is really a more reasonable measurement because that actually shows… that actually measures the amount of the VOCs that are in the vapors that could be coming up into the buildings.  And using those data, we found that for the most part, the risk assessment… the risk is below or at about one in a million except for the presence of benzene.  And benzene was there at levels, if you look at the groundwater… at soil vapor, at something just above one in a million.  The problem with benzene is that benzene is probably everywhere in any industrial site.  And it is not necessarily clear what the source or sources of that benzene would be.  

So I am willing to field questions and clarifications if I misstated it.  

MS. WALLIS:  I see a hand here from the CAG.  We are at the end of the extended Q&A, so I need more direction from the group.

MR. ROBINSON:  What I am proposing is that we continue on with the Q&A as we are going, and we will truncate what we need to on the latter half.  

MR. WEINER:  Joe, has that been made available?  Does the CAG have that risk assessment?

MS. GRAVES:  Actually, I was going to ask a question of Ms. Klein. 

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. Klein?

MS. KLEIN:  Yes.

MS. GRAVES:  Would you give some information of dates of the data that you are speaking of that you are making these conclusions of… basing these conclusions on?

MS. KLEIN:  Most of the investigation was done in 1935.  No, I'm sorry.  I don't mean to joke, but it was… in 2006 and 2007.  And I just asked the project manager, although this… the memo was written to… that described this risk assessment has been completed, it will be on EnviroStor… our EnviroStor database.  It has not yet been done, but it will certainly be available.

MS. PADGETT:  We know that the results that you are talking about are the second… are the result of the second round of sampling that have been done in Harbor Front.  In other words, there was a first round that did an initial assessment, and then there was a second round that went back, like, a year later to do an update.  And this is the results of the update.  When we are looking at plumes leaving the Zeneca Cherokee site and coming either across South 49th Street or moving west onto the UC Richmond Field Station, one of the concerns that we would have, I think as the public, is you measure it a year ago, you measure it this year, and you keep measuring it.  If we haven't modeled these plumes and their potential for off site migration, if the human health risk assessment for the Zeneca/Cherokee site presumes that the plume ends right at the border, right at the property line.  I… I am wondering how you are reconciling… you are saying you don't know the source of the benzene, but we really haven't combined the offsite with the onsite models to figure out what is happening with these plumes and projecting out into the future, the potential for these plumes to cause problems.  

So if we are talking about putting a remedy on one site but we haven't solved it for the offsite, I think we are being possibly shortsighted or we are splitting the problem just because the property line is there.

MS. KLEIN:  So you are saying that we have artificially, kind of where the property ends we have ended the plume that…   

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.

MS. KLEIN:  That we have found onsite, and we have done a separate thing for the Harbor Front.  That is what… I am trying to restate what you said. 

MS. PADGETT:  Yes, we piecemealed the plume.

MS. KLEIN:  Have we done that?  Let me say that I don't know… I cannot recall what we have done with the data with respect to characterizing the plume.  But all I am… what I am saying with that portion of the plume, wherever it comes from, that portion of the plume that underlies Harbor Front does not appear to pose any significant risk to the commercial industrial workers on Harbor Front utilizing these current data. 

I certainly don't disagree that we need to keep an eye on, and continue to monitor the plume, but as far as the data that we have collected to date, that portion of the plume, whether or not you can hook to it the plume that is onsite does not pose a significant risk to the workers at Harbor Front.

MS. PADGETT:  One in a million isn't enough of a risk?   

MS. COOK:  That is the risk standard that is identified in (inaudible). 

MS. PADGETT:  I know.  And I heard the two caveats.  The one was it is one in a million if we do one model without measuring the soil gas.  But measuring the soil gas in the three locations out in the front yard of where I work, well, the soil gas in those locations didn't meet the criteria.  We just didn't do a very concentrated grid.  We just did a couple of the stations.  We just didn't get soil gas that met a certain criteria.  It might be higher someplace else, but we don't know.

MS. KLEIN:  Part of the reason why the soil gas levels are relatively low in this whole area is because the soils underlying both Harbor Front are very, very tight.  It is very clay like.  It comes from… it is not sandy.  It is not gravely.  It is very, very hard to find enough pores, air filled pores, in that soil for the vapors to come through.  So even though we can see that there are VOCs in the groundwater, it is just so hard for those little molecules to come up to the surface. 

MS. PADGETT:  I know.  We don't want to take a lot of time on this.  I just want to… perhaps we'll go into the consideration of areas where there are deep water wells that do penetrate down and the possibility of the gases migrating around those well shafts.  

MS. KLEIN:  That is a preferential pathway.  

MS. PADGETT:  That is right. 

MS. KLEIN:  That certainly is something that is a good point.  The only thing I will say to that is that we do try to drill those wells in such a way that a preferential pathway cannot be established.

MS. WALLIS:  Mr. Blum had a comment.

MR. BLUM:  Several years ago this process started.  Just before this started I went to a community meeting that Cherokee/Simeon called to talk about their project.  It was 18 stories.  It was condos.  You all remember the original project.  And we were told at the time… we asked some questions like, "Well, this is… it's been a chemical plant for 100 years.  How is that going to be dealt with?  And we were given some stories of deed restrictions that the people who live there wouldn't dig in the dirt and they wouldn't grow food on their property because of deed restrictions, and the children wouldn't play in the dirt.  That would be the deed restriction.  And furthermore that the VOCs that came up into the bottom of the 18 story condo building would be whisked out with fans that ran 24 hours a day so that the VOCs wouldn't gather.  

So as a result of the fantasy, we have the CAG.  And now there are a lot of people who understand the chemistry a lot better than I do.  What I would love to see from Cherokee/Simeon, and I know that in the presentation we got here the uncapped… this is all theoretical because the plans for development haven't been completed yet or haven't been released, so it could be completely different.  That is just based on the data that is there now.  But I hope that the next round, I know that there is going to be development there, when it comes to that Cherokee will give us a proactive model that gives us confidence rather than making us hold the brakes on them and make a process like this necessary.  

So if you are on the borderline of maybe capped, maybe not capped, it would be wonderful if next time you go ahead of the curve for us and prove to the community that your interest in our health preservation matters, you know, that you have interest.  So that is just a comment for the future for when development plans come up.  It is a hope.

MR. MOSTELLER:  Thanks very much, Eric.  And I think one of the things that we are doing here is part of that.  I mean, that is why we are here today.  That is why DTSC is here today, and it is why we are working with DTSC to go through this very thorough process and to be wide open with it.

MS. WALLIS:  In the interest of time management, I did see one more hand from the audience in the back.  And I would like just to suggest that we take that last question or comment.  Then I got a suggestion from one of the CAG members that we have our break before the Tox Com Committee.  And I just wanted to make that suggestion that we make that small adjustment to the rearrangement of the agenda.  And I am seeing heads nod.

MR. ROBINSON:  I don't think we need a motion.

MS. WALLIS:  So please, in the back, please identify yourself for the transcriptionist.  

MS. BARROW:  Hi.  My name is Sue Barrow.  And my question for you, ma'am, is you said that there… the building risk level was slightly about one in a million and some of the concentrations have some background benzene.  Do we have any background benzene concentrations from just the ambient air to indicate that background concentration?

MS. KLEIN:  Well, I don't think I said "background concentrations" of benzene.  The amount of benzene… the amount of benzene that we found in soil vapor translates to a risk of about 1.2 percent in the persons potentially exposed.  And I don't have a handle on what the background ambient benzene concentrations might be at Harbor Front. 

MS. KING:  Kimi, I could respond to this, not for something in Richmond.  But we did some ambient air sampling near the Golden Gate Bridge in a place where you wouldn't really necessarily expect there to be a lot of benzene in ambient air because you have the wind coming through the Golden Gate.  And we found levels of benzene in the ambient air that was about ten to minus six level just in the ambient air not very far from the Golden Gate Bridge, pretty close to Fort Point.  So I would expect there to be benzene in the ambient air in Richmond as well, especially in the close proximity to 580. 

MS. WALLIS:  So slight change to the agenda.  We will take the break now.  It will be a five minute break instead of a ten minute break.  So adjourning at… we'll come back together at 8:05.  

(Recess.)

MS. WALLIS:  We will have a word from our chair. 

MR. ROBINSON:  In terms of an agenda review it looks like we went 15 minutes over, and we are going to go 15 minutes longer than we planned to tonight.  If that is a problem for anyone, I want to give you a heads up before we keep going.  But we'll follow the agenda with the few changes that Kay mentioned earlier.

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Esposito with the Toxics Committee update.  Thank you.

DR. ESPOSITO:  In the interest of recapturing some time, what I would like to do is to go directly to the issue about the contamination and recontamination of West Stege Marsh at the UC Berkeley Richmond Field Station.  And then I would like to talk, in absentia, about trichloroethylene, about uncertainty and the precautionary principle which I think fits in very nicely into the previous discussion we have just had here about the level of discomfort that one sometimes feels about numbers that have very    that are not very robust and consequently leave us with concerns.  

But the… at the last CAG meeting and at many Toxics Committee meetings we have been quite concerned about the insufficient characterization and the mitigation of chemical metal and perhaps radiological contamination at the UC Berkeley Richmond Field Station.  At our last meeting we had a review of the current conditions, and as far as many of us could tell, the nature of the contamination and the extent of it was severely under-estimated.  And the likelihood and mechanism of the way in which clean bay mud that was introduced to that site got recontaminated seems quite illogical.  

To give you a foretaste of that, to accept that mechanism for recontamination you would have to move PCBs against a 20,000 fold gradient back into the marsh from other areas in San Francisco Bay.  So Sherry, in the executive… the report of the Executive Committee will deal with that in absentia, and I just wanted to give you a foretaste of our concern about that.  One of the things that we have been trying to do this year at the CAG and in the Toxics Committee is to talk a little bit about the actual contaminants at the site to have a little bit of a colloquy about, you know, what is out there, what is it, why are we concerned about it.  

To the uninitiated a lot of our conversations sound like alphabet soup.  We talk about VOCs, PCBs, TCPs CHLs, MCLs, and I think if you were in any other employment other than being a CAG member or a responsible party or a consultant it would be difficult to follow.  So I want to talk a little bit about trichloroethylene and the picture of the molecule is in the handout.  And it is an interesting one because ethylene all by itself is a plant ripening agent.  That is… when you put your green tomatoes in a paper bag with some bananas that are ripe to hasten the ripening of the tomato, it is the ethylene which signals the tomato to ripen.  However, trichloroethylene, that is, replacing three of the four hydrogen atoms on the ethylene with a chlorine atom, results in a man-made degreasing agent that has been used as a solvent that's been employed in typewriter fluid, in adhesives, and many other materials.  

It is not the most carcinogenic or gravest health hazard that we have at the Zeneca Campus Bay site or at the UC Richmond Field Station, but it is certainly one that is very, very widespread throughout sites that are of concern because it is an industrial solvent.  And it is man-made, and consequently our defenses to man- made chemicals are somewhat limited.  

Now I will leave you to read about the various… the fact that TCE is implicated possibly as a human carcinogen, certainly as a rat carcinogen, that it affects your liver function, kidney function, it is an eye irritant, et cetera.  But the most disturbing thing about this and many other chemical compounds is that we don't have an adequate robust estimate of the cancer risk, for example.  

If you look on Page 78 of the draft Human Health Risk Assessment for Lots One, Two, and Three, which we just talked about, you will see a discussion of the fact that the EPA, US-EPA, is considering the possibility that the carcinogenicity of TCE, trichloroethylene is ten times greater than previously thought.  So that in the Lot One PCB, that is… and volatile organic compound area, Lot One, if you take the current value, the cancer risk as used in this Human Health Risk Assessment, it is three times ten to the minus seven, but on the other hand, if we were to use the more updated US-EPA risk assessment, the value is now two in 100,000.  

Now, that is a broad range.  And if you don't happen to be the three in 10th of a minus person who contributes the extra cancer death or the two in 10 to the minus fifth, these are small risks.  But to the people who are flopping over it is an appreciable risk.  But these are not robust numbers.  Suppose you went to your physician, and he recommends a pill for you.  And he says, "This will take care of your difficulty."  And you ask him, "How many should I take a day?"  And he says, "Between one and ten.  I am not really sure."  

That, I think, captures our discomfort with the fact that the numbers are not robust enough and also they are subject to change.  I love the example of radiation risk, the parallel universe that we have not yet spoken about where at one point a certain dose of radiation was thought to be harmless.  We now know that there is zero dose of radiation that is the harmless dose because there is no harmless dose.  You take an X ray, that is a risk benefit choice that you make with your physician or your dentist.  

So consequently, this uncertainty ties in very closely to the precautionary principle, and that is my personal feeling is that,    and I may be wrong, and that is that civil engineering evolves less quickly than the changes in cancer slope factors and that if you remove as much of any toxin from an area as is technically feasible and is monetarily feasible, that when the cancer slope factor changes you will say, "Well, it changed, but we did the best we could anyway, and there is nothing further we could do."  

On the other hand, here I hear a different story.  My sense is,    and I hope I am wrong, that we are adjusting what we do to a calculated risk level so we don't have to spend the money required to remove as much as possible of it as we could or can.  So I think that to try to capture the discomfort level that I heard in the previous conversation, I wanted to go directly to this discussion, and that is, we are as a community, why are we here?  You know, if there was a great deal of certainty about all of this, we wouldn't be sitting as an advisory group because we are asked to accept the solutions, to take the risk.  

I mean, we don't have community advisory groups about speed limits.  So I think that it is important for us to realize that there is a great area of ignorance and that the precautionary principle that we all mentioned a lot really bears on that.  And that is remove as much as you can because you never know what the true risk is, especially to individuals.  I don't know how many people in this room are more susceptible to TCE than the average person, but I suspect there might be at least two.  

So the point of my discussion this evening is that we would be much more comfortable if we could believe in the robustness of these numbers which are consistently changing.  Thank you.  Questions? 

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Esposito will do Q&A. 

MS. PADGETT:  Was there a "to do" on getting something on EnviroStor?  There was a comment earlier on getting something.  Did you say get something on EnviroStor? 

MS. LAPIERRE:  The Harbor Front Tract risk assessment that Kimi talked about. 

MS. PADGETT:  Can we get that on the action items? 

MS. WALLIS:  Yes, sure. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I will make a comment about data.  I find it almost unconscionable that we are 150, roughly 150 days out from the due date of the radiological risk assessment for this date site.  The original date was November 30th.  Now when the CAG or our consultants missed their report by a week, there is nuclear activity.  Okay.  We are in mid April.  Okay.  This, to my mind, is very discomforting because a great deal of effort went into providing preliminary data.  And I think we are owed at least an informal assessment of where we are.  And in particular, I think it would be very important for the CAG, because we understand the language of ordinary folk, to have copies of the actual interview notes of the individuals, the former employees of Stauffer who gave testimony.  I would like to see what they said they were doing before it gets filtered through two times ten to the minus seven, two times ten to the minus five.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  So a couple of things.  From one CAG member there was an action item from a previous discussion that you wanted captured.  It had to do with the Harbor Front data.  

MS. LAPIERRE:  Risk assessment.

MS. PADGETT:  Harbor Front.  Is it a risk assessment?

MS. KLEIN:  It is a screening level risk evaluation.

MS. PADGETT:  Screening level risk evaluation, and that is based on samples in 2007.  

MS. KLEIN:  2006 and 2007, groundwater, soil matrix and soil gas.

MS. WALLIS:  So the action item would be that this risk evaluation report would be put on EnviroStor? 

MS. KLEIN:  That is correct.

MS. WALLIS:  Is this DTSC, and is there a time line that you are going to commit to?

MS. NAKAMURA:  Next week.

MS. WALLIS:  Okay.  So make that… just put a date.  4/18/08 is a date that you are comfortable with?  Today is the 10th.  So April 10th.  Thank you.  Just wanted to make sure that that was…   

MS. PADGETT:  Do we have another action item from Michael which is an update from?

DR. ESPOSITO:  I would like to ask Zeneca to provide us an interim report on the radiological assessment for the site, and in particular, to preserve Michael Cooper's notes on the interviews of the former employees.

MS. WALLIS:  Who is responsible for the follow through for this requesting of Zeneca?

DR. ESPOSITO:  I will write the letter for the chair.

MS. WALLIS:  Did I hear you say to ask for preliminary   

DR. ESPOSITO:  An update.  

MS. WALLIS:  An update.  What is   

MS. PADGETT:  What is the status?  We have been waiting for a long time.

DR. ESPOSITO:  An interim report.

MS. WALLIS:  On the radiological assessment?  And you will do this within what time line? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  By the end of the week.

MR. ROBINSON:  By April, next week? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Yes.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you for helping me to clarify that action item.  So does that conclude the Toxics Committee or do you want to entertain comments or questions? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I can take questions if there are any.  Thank you very much.

MS. WALLIS:  So that leads into the next agenda item, then, which is the general public comment period.  So that is where we open it up specifically to the audience.  Any comments or questions for the CAG or any of the other representatives present?  I'll take that as an indication. 

MS. LAPIERRE:  Actually, I do have one.  Actually, Kimi, it is a question and/or comment on your talk.  And I know I haven't seen the report, but I guess two questions.  I wasn't sure when you were talking about the benzene issue if what you were saying was that you actually think what might have been measured down in the soil gas was from ambient air or rather just that, you know, it was in the subsurface which means there is a source in the subsurface.  But you also happened to see benzene in ambient air.  And those, to me, are two very different issues.  I wasn't sure what you were saying. 

MS. PADGETT:  The reason I have asked her to pursue it is that we are trying to figure out… we haven't had adequate modeling to date, still, of the plumes on the Zeneca site coming over across the street.  We are trying to figure out what it is you are referencing and its relationship back to the Zeneca site.  

MS. KLEIN:  Have they seen the data reports at all?

MS. NAKAMURA:  Yeah.  

MS. LAPIERRE:  I remember a while ago reading through the data reports, the Weiss data reports.  

MS. KLEIN:  The reports that I utilized to get the vital data. 

MS. PADGETT:  We have seen the 2006.  I don't believe we have seen the 2007.  

MS. KLEIN:  There is a soil groundwater report that was dated October 5th, 2006, another report of October 2007. 

MS. PADGETT:  We haven't seen that one. 

MS. KLEIN:  A January 2006, and those are the three reports that I utilized to get the data.  And with respect to the sources I don't think that I tried to identify those sources.  It just did not appear that there was a “plume” of benzene, but more that we were finding benzene.  And we… from our experience at other sites it is    we often see benzene in the subsurface soil that have no identified source associated with them but are there, presumably, from barometric pumping, the change in atmospheric conditions that push ambient levels of benzene into the shallow subsurface.  And I    but I don't mean to imply that that is the source of this benzene, only that the way that benzene is found in this site does not lend itself well to identifying a source or sources.  

MR. MOSTELLER:  Is it detected in the groundwater?  

MS. KLEIN:  No.  I believe the groundwater was negative. 

MS. PADGETT:  And can you talk at all about the PCE or TCE plumes that are down at the corner of Seaport and South 29th that come from the Zeneca site and cross over right at… perhaps we can put that off until the next meeting and we can have more discussion about this. 

MS. KLEIN:  I believe that my screening risk assessment only looked at those data that come from the Harbor Front property.  And if it goes… if our investigation captured some of the contaminants from that plume that we already know exists, then, of course, it would have been included. 

MS. PADGETT:  All right.

MS. WALLIS:  Does that complete…   

MS. LAPIERRE:  Yeah.  I guess the other part of it, and I think it will really come out of looking at the reports, and it is kind of a theme that we have had on a lot of the reports, the remedial investigation reports, and the site assessment is looking for and hoping we have some understanding to the extent that there is of what we are seeing in terms of trends.  

I mean, I know that on the site risk assessment there were some areas where the soil gas assessments went up by an order of magnitude, and some discussion of what we see happening over time if we have multiple rounds of sampling and some theories as to what that might mean and what the risk assessments are on the risk assessment is helpful to help place and understand the significance of the risk.  So I don't know if there is that amount of data for the Harbor Front Tract, where there is more data for the onsite area or if you looked at just your maximum concentrations in those two different time periods.  

MS. KLEIN:  I only looked at the maximum concentrations, and, as I said, the data reports are from 2006, 2007.  So anything that established a trend from that would not.  

MS. LAPIERRE:  Is that the universe of data that exists for that off site area?  

MS. KLEIN:  That is the universe of data that we have confidence in its quality.  I am not sure whether there has been data conducted prior to that time. 

MS. WALLIS:  I saw Dr. Rabovsky's hand, and then we'll go to you.  

DR. RABOVSKY:  In this meeting and all others there has always been a tension between the issue of the current exposures and the past exposures.  And what we have been told, and I understand this is probably because of the mandates that different departments have, DTSC is working… that works basically with your current exposures; whereas concerns about health effects and past exposures you go over to the Department of Public Health.  

And this happens a lot.  You have people working on the same site with the same people, but you have got one group that works over here with this group and you have got another group over here.  And there is this big chasm in the middle.  I would really hope that all of the departments that are working on this issue would start talking to each other and work together so that we can bring these issues in at one place.  

It is the same thing about plumes that stop at a fence line which is artificial.  I think it is also artificial to totally sep…    although maybe necessary at some point… to separate a current exposure scenario with past exposures which are very difficult when they were historical.  You don't have the data.  We are here because we are concerned about the health of people.  We are here for public health issues.  And so in order to get a handle on that I would like to see all of the people that are involved at the state level to start getting together and bring it together.  There has got to be a mechanism for that.

MS. COOK:  Can I respond to that?  We do have conversations with the Department of Public Health.  And maybe the question that has to be posed back to the CAG is that a member of the Department of Public Health office come to the CAG meetings every single time so that they can talk to Mr. Thompson based on his comments that he made and the other comments that were raised today.  And they are here.  That dialogue is occurring, but DTSC cannot speak for the Department of Public Health.

DR. RABOVSKY:  I am not asking for one to speak to the other.  I am asking if they speak with each other and that they come together and speak to us as a unit together.

MR. DOTSON:  Could you give us an example of something that you talked about?

MS. KLEIN:  We have conversations with regards to the historical assessments that they did as part of the work that they had done historically and they gave presentations to the group here.  We have talked about other issues, any type of data that we have, we provide that information.  There are conversations that occur with Lynn and their staff on a fairly regular basis.  I can't give specifics, but that dialogue is occurring.  So all I can ask is that if you want a representative from the Department of Public Health to come, you will have to request that.  DTSC cannot make that request.

MS. WALLIS:  Mr. Blum and then Mr. Thompson. 

MR. BLUM:  Yes.  When the discussion was going on earlier about benzene perhaps migrating from the air down into the soil, don't we have a lot of air monitoring data?  Could you look at that and see if it was benzene in the air there which would, perhaps, tell you whether the air is saturated with benzene there or not if you got benzene in the soil and we are not getting it in the air, that means it is underground and it is coming from there.  I am not a scientist.  I am asking that question.   

MS. COOK:  We'll look to verify that data, but I think that one of the things that I think we also need to go back and verify is what underground tanks existed in this area and how they were closed.  I mean, I believe there was an underground tank at the Craig Cable business.  Benzene is a very common contaminant associated with underground tanks.  So we need to go back, and maybe that is where we try to do that assessment is trying to figure out where all of the underground tanks were associated with the Harbor Front businesses as well.

MR. BLUM:  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Mr. Thompson?

MR. THOMPSON:  How much involvement are we receiving from the Water Board pertaining to all of these water outlets and these creeks and things that are running somewhat parallel with Knox Freeway, which some of it is coming from one of the places that make glue… and what else is it that they make up here?  It is right there in a tract south of Central.  You have a place that's been there for a number of years that made adhesive glue.

MS. COOK:  The Water Board's authority deals with discharges into the waters of the state.  So they are going to be looking if there is any kind of discharges that would go into the creeks, they have a permitting process involved in those issues.  So we would have to go back and look at all of those as it relates to the projects that you are looking at.  Typically discharges that go into sanitary sewer districts are regulated by the wastewater treatment plant which ultimately is regulated by the Water Board.  So we will have to go look at all the different types.  They have regulatory authority for looking at any types of discharges that would impact the waters of the state.  

MR. THOMPSON:  One of the reasons I mention this is that right there in El Cerrito they used to have a plant that made dishes, and they used that lead glaze.  And that is right in alignment with Zeneca's properties or (inaudible), or whatever.  And you have, what, one, two… you have possibly two creeks that runs from that part of El Cerrito in that direction.

MS. COOK:  Maybe after this meeting you can give me a better understanding of where in El Cerrito it is and we'll look into that one. 

MR. DOTSON:  On the Bay Trail between where Seaport was and the Costco place is now.  

MS. COOK:  It is closer to Costco area? 

MR. DOTSON:  Yeah, about midway.  

MS. COOK:  Okay.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  There is also a creek from the adhesive plant from Central Avenue South.  There is an inlet under the freeway.  

MS. COOK:  What I actually need is… we'll talk after the meeting.  I actually need to get an idea of where the adhesive plant is and where the plate manufacturing plant was.  So I'll see both of you at the end of the meeting.

MS. WALLIS:  We have reached the end of the ten minutes that was allocated for public comment.  So we can move on.  But I see a hand now from Ms. Shipman.

MS. SHIPMAN:  Just a short comment because one of the other themes that keeps coming up and has been in some of our comments on previous documents is this question of groundwater and the plumes and how far they extend and whether they are connected with Harbor Front or with UC Richmond Field Station.  And I know we see a lot of contour maps with the groundwater data, but I know that the CAG is still questioning what do these plumes really look like when they coalesce, what is the picture in three dimensions.  So I am just putting that out there as something that I don't… they don't feel like they have a handle on the understanding, when we keep coming up with issues on the soil vapor, is it related to groundwater that if we could get a picture like that that might help.

MS. COOK:  You are looking at plumes that go toward Harbor Front or ones that go toward UC?

MS. SHIPMAN:  Well, I think both.  I don't think we have looked at all that data together. 

MS. PADGETT:  Dorinda, I would like to add something to that.  If you look at the maps and you separate out the VOCs and you go from page to page, and it might be PCB on one, TCE on another and benzene on another, so you flip through all of the VOCs, and what is difficult to get a handle on is the measurement at the… near the surface and then the measurement down lower and then the measurement in the groundwater, it is difficult to… the soil vapor is one measurement, and then have you the groundwater in the upper horizon and the groundwater in the lower horizon.  It has the appearance, when I have tried to map it out, that we have plumes that are layered and plumes that are joined.  So there are some plumes of some chemicals that are in an upper horizon that are moving possibly down into a lower horizon, and then there is a plume of another chemical that has a different shape.  And so we can't tell what we have got stacked on top of each other and what is combining and where it is combining.  And there is nothing in these reports that gives us a picture of the shape of the plumes and the different chemicals and how they might be overlapping and moving off site.

MS. COOK:  All right.  Thanks.

MS. WALLIS:  If that concludes the public comment period, then we'll move on to the committee updates.  And shall I turn it over to he chair, Mr. Robinson, or over to Ms. Padgett?

MR. ROBINSON:  Over to Ms. Padgett. 

MS. PADGETT:  First on the agenda is the draft letter from the CAG to DTSC regarding the status of the summary of violations.  We are still working on the letter.  It is in progress.  To remind everyone, DTSC issued a summary of violations to the University of California for the UC Richmond Field Station and a summary of violations to Zeneca for activities in 2001, 2002, and 2003.  It related to the movement of material from one site to another.  The licensing of vehicles, whether they were licensed in some cases, the storing of hazardous material on one site and then moving it back to another site and then moving it again, and some other things in those summary of violations.  

And we want to be sure that we are on record that if fines are assessed for these violations that the money be… the percentage that is allowed by law to be considered for the local community that Richmond be considered first and more specifically that some of the work that we are doing here be considered for support.  So that letter is still in the works.  

The next item is a letter that we are working on from the CAG to the Water Board regarding the Water Board's apparent delisting of Stege Marsh from the Section 303D of the Clean Water Act.  I am not going to… I am not an expert on this.  I am going to give you as much as I know about the Clean Water… the Section 303D of the Clean Water Act and then tell you what I… what apparently has happened and what we hope to do about it going forward.  The Clean Water Act Section 303D says that each state has to identify those areas of the water on their borders that… or within their borders that are toxic, that they have problems.  So Section 303D is, in essence, a list of those waters that have problems, that are toxic.  

And so here in the State of California the State Water… the Regional Water Quality Control Board goes through a listing process, and it goes through it apparently every other year.  And in 2006 they created their list of these areas that needed to be on the list.  And when it came to Stege Marsh, they created… they went through and created a new section of the 303 list which is a subset.  And what they said was… I need to go back.  Whenever one of these sites gets onto the 303 list it requires what is called a total maximum daily load assessment.  So you have got to go… it requires an assessment of how toxic are these locations and how are we going to get them from their toxic state to an acceptable level.  What actions are we going to take to get them from where they are now to something that is acceptable.  

The Water Board put out a list that said, "These are all of the locations that require total maximum daily load assessment."  And we are creating a new category, a subset of the 303D list that says there is another site, the Stege Marsh site, that is… will qualify for the 303D; however, it does not require a total maximum daily load assessment because it is under orders for current cleanup.  

So what I want to describe for you here is where we have got some difference of opinion.  The DTSC issued a cleanup order for this portion of Stege Marsh.  So it is this area right here like so, and this area right in here.  So the total acreage of that area is    well, actually the Water Board says that the Stege Marsh that they are including in their subset is only this 29 acres right in here.  And they don't list this area over here, at the UC Richmond Field Station, and they don't list any of this area of Stege Marsh.  So Stege Marsh total is about 145 acres if you include this entire area.  This is… this is all of Stege Marsh, and it is split by the Bay Trail.  The Water Board included in this subset, this 29 acres here, the south end of the Zeneca/Cherokee site, and they said, "It doesn't require a total maximum daily load because it is under orders from this other agency to be cleaned up."  And they did not include the Field Station, and they didn't include this area.  

So there has been a serious error here, what I call a gross error in Water Board judgment.  And the public "we" haven't been involved in that process.  And as far as we know, we don't know whether DTSC was called on to comment during the public comment period of the listing process.  

So we are writing a letter to the Water Board requesting that the CAG be involved in the public comment as well as requesting that they involve DTSC in assessing the entire area of Stege Marsh.  And there is a lot more material here that we can go into. 

MR. MAYES:  Andrew Mayes.  Really quickly, because I recall in terms of previous data and illustrations, two of the worst contaminated spots in Stege Marsh are south of the Bay Trail and immediately south of the Zeneca site, which water flows past both of those sites near our house as well on the west side.  Water flows past both of those sites back into the inland portion of the Stege Marsh which, quote, unquote, probably recontaminates those sites as opposed to… at least that is possible not coming from San Francisco and the rest of the Bay but immediately from Stege Marsh, which is no longer being classified as a problem. 

MS. PADGETT:  Andrew, you are right.  And even in the Water Board's own documents they identified Stege Marsh as one of the most toxic    in the top 10 percent in the State of California as recently as 1999.  And so for it to go from in the top 10 percent as recently as 1999 to go to this sub-category and only include 29 acres or about less than 30 percent of the whole area, something happened here.  So the 303D listing is now on our radar, and we will be writing a letter to request that it be reviewed.  Questions on that one?  There is one more.  I will see if we can get the computer over here.  

You know, some of you weren't here at the meeting before last, or you weren't here for the presentation when we talked about the "out of the box" symbol.  This is the Toxics Committee logo for at least this year.  We are thinking out of the box, and the box represents the regulatory constraints that DTSC has to work within and a lot of the other agencies.  And we want… we want to be able to look at these sites in a little different way, and this is the next episode.  

One of the presentations last week or last month was from the UC Richmond Field Station.  They made a presentation about an assessment they had done in the upland portion of the marsh.  And some terms they used were that the area was very safe for the workers.  And there were representations that the polychlorinated biphenyls that are in the soil could possibly have come from San Francisco, migrated from San Francisco.  I think… is that… did I understand that?

DR. ESPOSITO:  The 20,000 fold concentration. 

MS. PADGETT:  That is right.  So what I would like to go through quickly here is a little background on the PCBs at the Zeneca site.  And I know some of these aren't really clear.  These are copies from their reports.  None of this is my stuff.  This is just taking it from their reports.  So what we have here is the implementation report, Phase II, Sub unit 2A and 2B.  The Meade Street operable unit, that is what the whole area used to be called.  So this is the December 3rd report.  It is Figure 3, and what we want to look at is this little area right here because it relates somewhat to the newly found ash piles.  If you all remember last month we were told about the ash piles that are located right in here with PCBs totaling about 82 or 80 milligrams per kilogram.  We want to look at this area here for just a minute and carry that forward.  Here it is right here.  Andrew's house is right here.  Pablo's house is here.  And, you know, people are living all along here.  And this is the US-EPA building.  And this is the Cherokee/Zeneca site.  This is the upland area that they say is safe.  We'll move on to the next one.  

This is just an expanded view of it.  And this is the “Bulb”, the infamous “Bulb” that we talk about from time to time where there is a magnetic anomaly buried out here where we have been told there were barrels that were buried in prior time.  But that is not the subject of what we are talking about tonight.  

In 2002 sampling locations for PCBs showed high PCBs in these locations and a few more, but we want to look at these three.  And this red arrow right here is the one that we were just looking at.  This one up here is a manhole.  We are going to look at that in a minute.  So this is Stege Marsh Sampling Location 104.  This is Manhole 11.  And we put this… this is right out of the report.  It says, in order to evaluate possible upstream sources two samples were also collected from converging flow lines that historically drain into the storm drain that discharges into the Marsh.  A soil sample was collected at Location TP 103, that is right here, with a reported concentration of .3 milligrams per kilogram, which slightly exceeds the residential PRG.  In addition a sediment sample was collected from the storm drain and sanitary sewer overflow pipe in Manhole MH 11 with a concentration of 42 milligrams per kilogram.

Earlier you heard a discussion about what is acceptable.  One milligram per kilogram is really unacceptable.  We are talking about whether even that is acceptable.  So 42 milligrams per kilogram is a very high concentration of PCBs.  So that is up here at the northern end of the UC Richmond Field Station.  And that is back in 2000.  So let's get back to that area where we were talking about, Stege Marsh 104.  Right here, it is hard to read, it is 1,600 milligrams per kilogram.  That is off the chart.  1,200 milligrams per kilogram, and that was in 2000.  So they knew that they had a hot spot out there that was off the charts.  I mean, this didn't come in from San Francisco.  This is a hot spot.  It is right out there in the Marsh.

MR. ROBINSON:  This is below the Bay? 

MS. PADGETT:  That is right.  This is zero feet.  That is 23 milligrams per kilogram.  This is two feet, 1600 milligrams per kilogram.  This is at 4 feet, 1200 milligrams per kilogram.  Here it is on a map.  We have got the 1600 milligrams per kilogram and the 1200.  There is the spot.  And the area where we now have the little ash piles is just right over here.  So it is… you know, it is not very far.  So it is not as if… we just didn't sample over here.  That is all.  

MR. THOMPSON:  Was that reading taken as to what elevation in comparison to the sea level?

MS. PADGETT:  No.  It was ground level.  I haven't seen anything in relation to sea level in any of these reports.  So here we are back at the map, and this is Area M1 A.  And that is kind of key because that was an area that the Water Board told them to dig out.  So M1 A, they dug it out.  And here we are with the excavation details of what they dug out in that hot spot.  

And last month there was a representation made when I said that that area still had PCBs in it.  The representation by the University was that that area had been cleaned up.  So here we are with the cleanup.  This is the M1 A marsh excavation.  You see a whole lot of black sticky stuff typical of marsh mud.  Here is the storm drain.  Remember the manhole upstream?  And they have got a drain that runs all the way down north south on the property.  So they dug up the storm drain, and they mixed up all of the sediment and they hauled it away to Kettleman landfill along with DDE.  That was also in it.  And here is a discussion of how they treated it.  They dug it out, they solidified it with this binding reagent, this cement kiln dust, and they hauled it out and then they tested the bottom.  They verified with visual inspections of the excavated grade during excavation, and they sampled, and they took three samples at the bottom.  

And what they found was the… results were conditionally approved by the Water Board.  "Monitoring required to show that the excavation bottom remains capped by two feet of bay mud."  Now you are wondering why do they need to monitor it for the rest of forever.  Why does it need to be monitored for two feet of fill.  This was the area that was represented to have been cleaned up.  And it is not on the Current Conditions report.  It is not… this is just one    two little sentences buried in a report that hasn't been brought forward.  

And it goes on and it talks about how they dealt with it.  And here we have a 4.8 milligrams per kilogram of PCBs buried out there at the bottom.  This is the one sample they took in the bottom of that pit.  So what we have is they dug it out in that one little area, that M1 A.  They hauled it away.  When they got to the bottom of the pit they knew they still had PCBs down there but they were coming up… if I remember the story correctly they were coming up against the Clapper Rail season, and the Water Board told them to fill it in and finish it up because, you know, we have got the Water Board… the Clapper Rail that needs to be protected.  So the Water Board told them to bury it.  

And in the transition from the Water Board over to DTSC, I am not sure this particular hot spot was followed.  And the University sure hasn't brought it to anybody's attention.  And in addition they left behind the… there is some DDT still out there, and right here, in that same area.  These concentrations I am not sure exceed certain thresholds, but it does still register.  

This map is from one of their reports, and I put it in here because it shows… you see this north… this north signal here, this little compass?  This is the area that got remediated.  And what they show in here is all of the areas that they say… and we all agree are still in need of cleanup.  They need to be characterized and they still need to be cleaned up.  

But the… but the representation is that employees and workers who are in this area are somehow safe, and… even though we haven't cleaned up this area.  So I want to fast forward through these and get to… here we are, the water.  That area we just saw that has been cleaned up is this water right here.  And this water over here hasn't been cleaned up.  But it looks like all one lake to me.  There we are.  So we have got the cleaned up area that runs right along here, and then everything on the other side of that is not cleaned up.

MR. DOTSON:  Is there an outlet?

MS. PADGETT:  I'll show you the outlet.  This is high tide.  The point of these pictures is to show you that in high tide the water comes in, flows over all of those contaminated areas, the water is on top of the remediated area and then it flows out again.  So I don't have pictures here of the low tide.  But in the low tide it looks like a big, not mud hole, but it looks like the marsh.  And during high tide we have got water flowing over all of those unremediated areas.

MR. MAYES:  In that picture right there, SM 103 is to the left hand side and under water.  

MS. PADGETT:  The light…    

MR. MAYES:  That is the Bulb, right? 

MS. PADGETT:  The Bulb is right over here.  There, there is the Bulb.  So here is the SM 103 right here. 

MR. MAYES:  It is about a foot… less than two feet. 

MS. PADGETT:  It is not even that high.  It is really close.  And the ash pile they were talking about where they now have the 80 milligrams per kilogram PCBs is right in here.  So I think part of the point of this series of these slides is to… here we have got the Mudsucker again, and remember, this is the one that is growing…    it is a confused fish.  It is growing both ovaries and testes because its endocrine system is so interrupted… that came out of Stege Marsh along with some others.  

And the reason we are bringing this up is that some of the representations are made as if it is… the University is finding these PCBs for the first time.  The suggestion that the PCBs had come in from San Francisco is just beyond, really, belief here that they could have…   

MR. DOTSON:  How was the fish collected?

MS. PADGETT:  You missed that presentation.  I'll catch you up.  That was the first one.  We had an out of box presentation.  We'll have one just for you.  

MR. THOMPSON:  Did they ever run into samples on the Powell worms?  The little worms that will pinch you.  They used to fish with them in that… they live in that mud.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  They did many invertebrates including those worms.  And they had high tissue levels of contaminants, and the fish eat them.  

MR. THOMPSON:  And the human beings eat the fish. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  And the birds eat the fish. 

MS. PADGETT:  Okay.  So the summary of all of this, we just focused on the PCBs.  Michael, during the Toxic update and in his handout, I think he included PCB… did you include a PCB? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Yes. 

MS. PADGETT:  The PCB ATSDR sheet.  We don't want to be fooling around with these.  This is a serious chemical.  We could have talked about the mercury, the arsenic, the… a dozen other chemicals that are also in the Marsh, but just tonight we talked about the PCBs and how incredulous it was to be told last month that this hot spot is new, that it could have possibly come from another place clear across the Bay, not sure when, in fact.  We have got at least ten years worth of data that identify these PCBs as having been there for quite some time at very high concentrations.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  Under committee updates, there was one more item about Zeneca/Cherokee technical funding status. 

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  And we would really appreciate it if the CAG's attorney could help us through that one.  Peter, could you give us a little update on that?

MR. WEINER:  Yeah, sure.  As everybody knows, the CAG has received technical funding both for facilitator and for technical consultants from Cherokee.  And the amount has been approximately $185,000; is that correct? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  For technical.

MR. WEINER:  It was $15,000 a month, I think, or I am sorry... you are right.  I'm sorry.  You are right.  So it was $180K or so, for technical $185K.  And the CAG, as you may remember, back in January had asked Cherokee for more funding because it did not feel that it had enough to do some of the tasks.  Many of the tasks had not been included in the original set of tasks that were agreed to in a memorandum of agreement.  

And there have been meetings both with CAG members and indirectly between the consultants and Cherokee to discuss what the needs are and what the ability of Cherokee to pay more money has been.  And the ultimate… we haven't quite finished the process yet, but I am pleased to say that Cherokee has been forthcoming in terms of another… an additional $65,000 or so.  That may change slightly, and forgive me, but things were changing even as I walked into the meeting.  I was with Cherokee's attorneys, so I am not quite clear on this.  It may be slightly more than that, but to fund a number of tasks.  Cherokee, on the other hand, of course, one of the reasons for reaching out to the CAG and providing these funds other than being a good neighbor and altruism is that the Cherokee would like to get a project built.  So the review times have been very more to Cherokee, and they've been trying to… and with consultant help it's been easier to meet those review times because we have other help and CAG members have jobs and other lives.  I don't mean consultants don't have other lives, but this is…   

MR. MOSTELLER:  Consultants generally don't.  They work all the time.

MR. WEINER:  So we are trying to work that out so we can meet review times, and if there are certain tasks that won't be funded and if the CAG members will have more time since they can't go quite as quickly, and we still have some actual time lines in there.  So I would say that we are close.  The CAG does not want to commit to time reviews that it can't meet.  Cherokee wants to make sure that times don't go on for a very long time.  So we are very close in discussion of that.  And I wish I could give you all the details, but by the time I left the office things were still going back and forth in e-mails.  And we should have… I am hoping that we will have something done by tomorrow.

MS. WALLIS:  So that should conclude, then, the committee updates portion of the agenda.  Well, as our chair announced after the break, there was an anticipation that we would go over our 9:00 o'clock adjournment and take no more than about 15 minutes after that time.  So we have one more item left which is the kind of approval of prior meeting minutes and collecting question slips.  I am going to briefly go over the action items and any other wrap up.  I will turn it over to the secretary, Carolyn Graves.

MS. GRAVES:  Yes.  I have been trying to get meeting minutes to those folks without e mail.  At the pleasure of the CAG I would like to propose voting on the prior meeting minutes. 

MS. PADGETT:  I have a correction that I haven't sent to you, and it is Karl Hans is spelled with the K.  

MS. GRAVES:  Okay. 

MS. PADGETT:  And in the minutes I think he is listed with a C.  

MS. GRAVES:  I'll make a note of that.  With the exception of that correction, are people ready to approve the minutes?  

MR. BLUM:  So moved.  

MR. SCHWAB:  Second. 

MS. GRAVES:  All in favor?  Any opposed?  The motion passes.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. Graves, was there any followup from question slips from prior meetings that you needed to address?  

MS. GRAVES:  I don't have them at this time.  I did get a question slip already, so we will present them next meeting.

MS. WALLIS:  If there are additional questions or comment slips, those green slips of paper we talked about, please make sure before you leave that you give them to either me or Ms. Graves.  In addition to our wrap up, we do expect next month on May 8th, the second Thursday of the month, to be back at the City Council Chambers.  But please watch the notice that you receive in the mail to make sure that that location is confirmed.  This month was a good example of how that can change.  We had two action items that we collected tonight.  I just want to go over them real quickly to make sure I got them correct.  DTSC by April 18th will be putting up on EnviroStor the Harbor Front screening level risk evaluation that was based on 2006 and 2007 samples.  And then Dr. Esposito will be preparing a letter in which Zeneca will be asked to preserve Michael Cooper's interview notes and to provide a status and interim report, status report on the radiological assessment.  And that will be prepared by April 18th. 

MS. PADGETT:  There are three action items left over from the last meeting that I would like to carry forward so maybe we don't have to talk about them here.  Maybe I can… when you develop this list I can give them to you so that you can add them to this list from last month's meeting.  

MS. WALLIS:  Very good.  And in terms of the process, just so you know, I forward these items to the CAG secretary, and then I believe as we go forward she'll be forwarding them not only to the people involved but to all of the principal players in the meeting, so the CAG Executive Committee, the representatives from CSV, from DTSC.  All right.  So that has to do with the action items.  And would you like to adjourn our meeting, Mr. Chair?  

MR. ROBINSON:  I propose that we adjourn.  All in favor?  

(The meeting was adjourned.)
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